
NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE 
 

BOARD MEETING 

 

Thursday, August 16, 2018  

Zia Board Room – Library 

1:30 pm 

 

AGENDA 
 

A. Welcome Pat Chappelle 

 

B. Adoption of Agenda Pat Chappelle 

 

C. Approval of Minutes of July 19, 2018 Pat Chappelle 

 

D. President’s Report Kelvin Sharp 

 

E. New Business 

1. Monthly Expenditure Reports Dan Hardin 

2. Monthly Revenue Report Dan Hardin 

3. Oil and Gas Revenue Report Dan Hardin 

4. Schedule of Investments Dan Hardin 

5. Quarterly Financial Action Report Dan Hardin 

6. Consideration of Research & Public Service Projects (RPSP) Funding Dan Hardin 

7. Consideration of Resolution of Appreciation and Acknowledgement  Scotty Holloman 

for the Pamela Waggoner Parkinson Memorial Scholarship 

8. Consideration of the Transfer of the Eunice Property Scotty Holloman 

 

F. Public Comments Pat Chappelle 

 

G. Announcement of Next Meeting Pat Chappelle 

 

H. Closure of Open Meeting Pat Chappelle 

 Discussion of Disposal of Real Estate – Del Norte Center 

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, §10-15-1(H) (8)  

 

I. Reconvene Open Session 

9. Consideration of Approval of Bid for the Del Norte Center Scotty Holloman  

Real Estate Property Sale 

 

J. Adjournment Pat Chappelle 



 

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE 

Board Meeting 

July 19, 2018 

  Minutes 
 

 

The New Mexico Junior College Board met on Thursday, July 19, 2018, beginning at 

1:30 p.m. in the Zia Room of Pannell Library. The following members were present: Ms. 

Patricia Chappelle, Madam Chair; Mr. Ron Black, Secretary; Mr. Travis Glenn; Mr. 

Manny Gomez; Mrs. Mary Lou Vinson; Ms. Evelyn Rising; and Mr. Hector Baeza. 

 

Ms. Chappelle called the meeting to order and welcomed visitors and guests present:  

Kelly Farrell, Hobbs News-Sun.  

 

Upon a motion by Mr. Glenn, seconded by Mr. Gomez, the agenda was unanimously 

adopted. 

 

Upon a motion by Mr. Glenn, seconded by Mr. Baeza, the Board unanimously approved 

the minutes of June 21, 2018. 

 

Under President’s Report,   Mrs. Kim Latimer, Program Planner – Continuing Education 

and Community Programs, provided updates of the Summer Youth College Camp and 

Classes that began in June and will end this week.  She reported there were 260 

registrations with students coming from various areas to include Long Beach, California 

and Houston, Texas.  Of the 260 registrations, ninety one students signed up for one 

class, forty signed up for two classes, fifteen signed up for three classes, five signed up 

for four classes, one signed up for five classes, two signed up for six classes and one 

signed up for seven classes.  Classes offered this summer included Young Chefs 

Cooking, Robotics, Hands on Science, Spanish, Black Rockets Computer Gaming, and 

Zumba.  In addition, she stated two new classes, Spanish and Ready, Set, & Learn, were 

also offered this summer to students ranging from the ages of three to five.  Mrs. Latimer 

further reported, due to low enrollment, camp classes scheduled for the end of July were 

cancelled. 

 

Mr. Dale Gannaway and Mr. Gary Pankonien provided New Horizons Foundation 

updates.  Mr. Gannaway reported the first water well test of the Hydro Tool had good 

results with positive data.  He reported six additional oil wells are scheduled for testing 

next week with results from the wells to be matched up with the data from the computer 

modeling done at the Army Research Lab and the Design & Engineering Center in New 



Jersey.  Mr. Gannaway also reported the final prototype of the muffler, developed by a 

local manufacturer, is very close to completion.    

 

Dr. Charley Carroll provided updates of the construction of the Allied Health Building.  

He reported construction is over 50% complete, is on schedule and is within budget.  The 

scheduled completion date is December 7, 2018.  He reported the roof and walls are up, 

the plumbing and electrical inspection have been completed in area A, and the floor pipe 

system entrenched to the central plant is complete with the trench to be covered by the 

first week of August.  The Certificate of Occupancy is anticipated for the first week of 

December with the transition of inventory and furniture to follow.  Dr. Carroll noted that 

Chuck Lowry, the HB Construction Superintendent, has extended an invitation to the 

Board to tour the facility in the near future. 

 

Dr. Sharp shared the Higher Education in Southeast New Mexico presentation provided 

to the Legislative Finance Committee (LFC) Hearing, held in Carlsbad, New Mexico in 

June of 2018.  Dr. Sharp provided significant discussion on various reports regarding 

NMJC’s credit hour enrollment numbers, graduation rates, retention rates for fulltime 

students, the partnership with the New Mexico Public Schools, updates of the non-credit 

Workforce Training programs and the credit and non-credit Training for Jobs programs, 

the financial condition and the infrastructure condition of NMJC.  In addition, Dr. Sharp 

provided information from the Higher Learning Commission’s website showing NMJC 

as one of six institutions recommended to other institutions to model when preparing 

their affirmation. 

 

Under New Business,   Dr. Sharp presented Retirement Resolutions for Charles H. 

Adams for twenty years of service, Dr. Dennis G. Atherton for six years of service, 

Regina F. Choate for eight years of service, Donald B. Hancock for eleven years of 

service, Sandy G. Hardin for seventeen and three quarter years of service, Randy W. 

Johns for seventeen years of service, Kathleen F. Miller for twenty years of service, Ruth 

Wong for eleven years of service, and Dr. Yau-Sun Wong for fourteen years of service.  

Upon a motion by Mr. Glenn, seconded by Mr. Gomez, the Board unanimously approved 

the Retirement Resolutions as presented. 

 

Mr. Dan Hardin presented the June 2018 financial reports. Upon a motion by Mr. Gomez, 

seconded by Mrs. Vinson, the Board unanimously approved the Expenditure Report for 

June 2018.  In addition, the Revenue Report, Oil and Gas Revenue Report, and Schedule 

of Investments Report were reviewed. 

 



Mr. Dan Hardin presented a consideration of upgrades to the track and field in 

preparation of hosting the May 2019 National NJCAA Outdoor Track Championship.  He 

reported the $600,000.00 allocated in capital projects at the April Board meeting would 

not be adequate funding to complete the upgrades necessary to host an event of this 

magnitude.  Administration requests approval to move an additional $1,000,000.00 to the 

$600,000.00 allocated in the April Board meeting and approval to move forward with the 

requested upgrades.  Upgrades include doubling the bleacher capacity, adding lighting to 

the track and field event area, purchase of a scoreboard, remodeling and adding 

additional restroom facilities, adding a concession area, adding a javelin throwing land, 

and a new storage building for track equipment.  Mr. Glenn asked how many teams are 

expected to participate in the Nationals.  Mr. Hardin responded approximately 700 

athletes are anticipated to attend and further noted this does not include the coaches, 

trainers, fans, and family.  Upon a motion by Mr. Gomez, seconded by Mr. Black, the 

Board unanimously approved the additional $1,000,000.00 and approved moving forward 

with the upgrades requested. 

 

Mr. JoeMike Gomez, Purchasing Coordinator, presented RFP Bid #119 – Purchase of 

Furniture for the Allied Health Building.  The administration recommended acceptance of 

the bid from Workspace Dynamics in the amount of $244,253.12.  Mr. Manny Gomez 

asked for the budgeted amount for the purchase of equipment and furniture.  Mr. Hardin 

responded the budgeted amount is approximately $1,200,000.00/$1,300,000.00.  Upon a 

motion made by Mr. Gomez, seconded by Mr. Glenn, the Board unanimously approved 

the recommendation. 

 

Ms. Chappelle called for comments from the public. There being none, the next regular 

board meeting was scheduled for Thursday, August 16, 2018 beginning at 1:30 pm. 

 

Upon a motion by Mrs. Vinson, seconded by Mr. Gomez, the board meeting adjourned at 

2:40 pm. 

 

_________________________    _________________________  

         Pat Chappelle, Chair     Ron Black, Secretary 



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE 
Vice President for Finance 

 

 

     
 

To: New Mexico Junior College Board Members                 

From: Dan Hardin  

Date: August 10, 2018 

RE: Expenditure and Revenue Reports for July 2018 

 

July is the first month of the 2018/2019 fiscal year.  The total expended and 
encumbered for the month and year to date for July was $3,844,160.00. Purchase 
orders that were in place at the end of FY 18, were rolled over into FY 19. JoeMike 
Gomez, Purchasing Coordinator, also set up new purchase orders for FY 19 for the 
normal recurring monthly expenditures such as the utilities.  It appears that large sums 
of funds were expended in the month of July, but a large portion of the amount 
expended is due to the encumbering of funds.    
 
In current unrestricted funds for July, expenditures were $1,968,952.00 for the month.  
Most of these expenses are the normal monthly payroll and benefit expenditures.  As 
you can see as compared to FY 18 most areas track along with what was expended in 
July of last year. Internal Services (Computer Services, Motor Pool, & Document 
Center) have monthly credits posted to these departments.  Just like in July of 2017 the 
credits were more than the expenditures.        
 
Restricted funds expended $351,697 for the month, most of which are normal 
expenditures for the grants along with student aid for the summer sessions.  Year round 
pell began this summer of 2018, which appears to have increased the financial aid 
expenditures in July of 2018 as compared to July of 2017.  
 
The expenditures in the plant funds are mainly the encumbrances for construction 
projects. The purchase orders for the construction of the Allied Health Building, 
Technology Upgrades, and Dorm Refurbishing projects make up the bulk of the 
1,523,511.00.  
 
The total year to date expenditures is $3,844,160.00. 
 
The Current Unrestricted Revenue generated in July 2018 was $1,678,910.00.  This 
consists of tuition and fees, the allocation from the State, Oil and Gas accrual of 
$465,000.00 and auxiliary enterprises revenue. Registration for the FY 19 summer and 
fall semesters began in April, in August the deferred revenue from the tuition and fees 
will be posted.  In FY 18 the deferred revenue was posted in July.  The Oil and Gas 
revenue in July is also different because the Oil and Gas revenue received in July is 



booked in the prior fiscal year, so we use the monthly accrual of $465,000.00 for the Oil 
and Gas revenue in July.  The Oil & Gas report is reporting the revenue that goes into 
FY 18. In July, the College received $1,621,885.00 in Oil & Gas revenue for the month 
of April. There will be two more months of Oil & Gas revenue to be posted in FY 18.   
 
 
The investment report shows no activity in the LGIP funds for the month of July with the 
ending balance remaining at $14,593,127.00 and $3,000,000.00 in Lea County State 
Bank CDARs.  Total investments at the end of July is $17,593,127.00. 
 
At the end of July, the College had $18,203,440.29 in designated capital projects.   
  
 
Josh Morgan and other Business Office personnel have been working diligently to get 
the 17/18 fiscal year end closed and prepare for the upcoming audit.  The auditors were 
on campus the week of July 23rd and they will be back on campus again the week of 
September 10th.  Human Resources, Financial Aid, NMJC Foundation, and the 
Bookstore staff have also worked hard to provide information for the audit team. We 
appreciate these folks for their attention to detail and their professional and timely 
response to audit team questions. 
 
This is the Financial Report for July 2018.    



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Expenditure Report

July 2018

8% of Year Completed

2016-17 2017-18
Year-to-Date Percentage Current Percentage

Final Expended or of Budget Expended or Expended or of Budget

Fund Budget Encumbered Expended Budget Encumbered  Encumbered Expended

CURRENT UNRESTRICTED FUND

   Instruction and General:    

         Instruction 10,058,717 495,240 5% 10,219,294 431,816 431,816 4%

         Academic Support 2,501,303 188,419 8% 2,656,318 169,527 169,527 6%

         Student Services 1,990,627 153,253 8% 2,046,450 126,465 126,465 6%

         Institutional Support 3,888,147 305,334 8% 4,317,093 323,027 323,027 7%

         Operation & Maintenance of Plant 3,652,603 388,896 11% 3,731,780 388,998 388,998 10%

  

   Subtotal - Instruction & General 22,091,397 1,531,142 7% 22,970,935 1,439,833 1,439,833 6%

  

        Research 850,000 61,217 0% 850,000 85,181 85,181 10%

        Public Service 0 0% 50,000 670 670 0%

        Internal Service Departments 87,288 (7,110) -8% 119,306 (5,686) (5,686) -5%

        Student Aid 668,551 24,338 4% 685,880 41,511 41,511 6%

        Auxiliary Enterprises 2,066,294 372,622 18% 2,125,946 357,845 357,845 17%

        Athletics 1,270,979 36,721 3% 1,613,798 49,598 49,598 3%

  

        Total Current Unrestricted Fund 27,034,509 2,018,930 7% 28,415,865 1,968,952 1,968,952 7%

CURRENT RESTRICTED FUND   

  

   Grants 1,977,141 72,652 4% 881,787 45,252 45,252 5%

   Student Aid 3,989,359 57,967 1% 4,188,219 306,445 306,445 7%

  

            Total Current Restricted Fund 5,966,500 130,619 2% 5,070,006 351,697 351,697 7%

  

PLANT FUNDS   

  

   Capital Outlay / Bldg. Renewal & Repl.   

       Projects from Institutional Funds 9,723,989 996,636 10% 18,203,440 1,095,156 1,095,156 6%

       Projects from State GOB Funds 3,960,000 0% 289,894 275,483 275,483 95%

       Projects from State STB Funds 596,058 0% 114,064 114,064 114,064 100%

       Projects from General Fund 0 0% 0%

       Projects from Private Funds 0 0% 0%

       Projects from State ER&R 332,720 22,954 7% 332,720 4,246 4,246 1%

       Projects from State BR&R 597,281 3,648 1% 597,281 34,562 34,562 6%

       Subtotal - Capital and BR&R 15,210,048 1,023,238 7% 19,537,400 1,523,511 1,523,511 8%

  

   Debt Service   

       Revenue Bonds 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%

            Total Plant Funds 15,210,048 1,023,238 7% 19,537,400 1,523,511 1,523,511 8%

  

  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 48,211,057 3,172,787 7% 53,023,271 3,844,160 3,844,160 7%



Revenue Report
July 2018

8% of Year Completed

2016-17 2017-18
Percentage Percentage

Final Year-to-date of Budget Current Year-to-date of Budget
Fund Budget Revenue Received Budget Revenue Revenue Received

CURRENT UNRESTRICTED FUND

   Instruction and General:    
           Tuition and Fees 3,812,000 1,354,741 36% 3,887,000 443,726 443,726 11%
           State Appropriations 5,629,937 469,158 8% 5,805,900 478,259 478,259 8%

  Advalorem Taxes - Oil and Gas 7,235,000 465,000 6% 7,235,000 465,000 465,000 6%
           Advalorem Taxes - Property 7,700,000 0 0% 8,530,000 0%
           Interest Income 10,000 0 0% 10,000 0%
           Other Revenues 296,538 11,342 4% 320,476 5,711 5,711 2%

  

           Subtotal - Instruction & General 24,683,475 2,300,241 9% 25,788,376 1,392,696 1,392,696 5%
  

   Research 400,000 0 0% 0%
   Public Service 0 0 0% 0%
   Internal Service Departments 12,500 0% 12,500 576 576 5%
   Auxiliary Enterprises 3,668,000 412,496 11% 2,615,000 248,297 248,297 9%
   Athletics 448,100 37,382 8% 454,600 37,341 37,341 8%

  
            Total Current Unrestricted 29,212,075 2,750,119 9% 28,870,476 1,678,910 1,678,910 6%

CURRENT RESTRICTED FUND   

  
   Grants 1,977,141 74,007 4% 881,787 46,203 46,203 5%
   Student Aid 3,989,359 63,187 2% 4,188,219 304,571 304,571 7%

  
            Total Current Restricted 5,966,500 137,194 2% 5,070,006 350,774 350,774 7%

  

PLANT FUNDS   

  
   Capital Outlay / Bldg. Renewal & Repl.   
      Projects from State GOB Funds 3,960,000 0% 289,894 0%
      Projects from State STB Funds 596,058 0 0% 114,064 0%

Projects from General Fund 0 0 0% 0%
Projects from Private Funds 0 0 0% 0%
Interest Income  (LGIP) 25,000 0% 102,000 23,019 23,019 0%

 
            Total Plant Funds 4,581,058 0 0% 505,958 23,019 23,019 5%

  

  
GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 39,759,633 2,887,313 7% 34,446,440 2,052,703 2,052,703 6%

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Oil and Gas Revenue Report

June 2018

100% of Year Completed

OIL GAS COMBINED

   2015-16 Variance
Month of Price Lea County Price Lea County Monthly Original Over (Under)

Sales Distribution per BBL BBLs sold per MCF MCF sold Revenue Budget Budget

Actual July $41.11 7,043,447 $3.16 25,188,223 817,449 465,000 352,449
Actual August $43.06 7,085,620 $3.71 25,547,110 873,645 465,000 408,645
Actual September $44.66 7,227,236 $3.79 24,020,104 965,644 465,000 500,644
Actual October $45.76 8,509,170 $3.65 30,213,740 1,129,761 465,000 664,761
Actual November $52.12 8,315,789 $3.91 27,529,490 1,371,215 465,000 906,215
Actual December $55.74 9,059,394 $3.54 30,776,786 1,098,317 465,000 633,317
Actual January $61.57 8,776,392 $3.64 29,184,430 1,547,258 465,000 1,082,258

Actual February $60.75 8,427,721 $3.38 29,613,231 1,364,798 465,000 899,798
Actual March $58.25 10,789,008 $3.07 34,922,274 1,563,902 465,000 1,098,902
Actual April $60.34 10,593,308 $3.72 29,501,061 1,621,885 465,000 1,156,885
Accrual May 465,000 465,000 0
Accrual June 465,000 465,000 0

Y.T.D. Production Tax Revenue 13,283,874 5,580,000 7,703,874

Y.T.D. Equipment Tax Revenue 1,560,756 1,655,000 (94,244)

Total Year-to-Date Oil & Gas and Equipment Tax Revenue 14,844,630 7,235,000 7,609,630

Source:  New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Schedule of Investments

July 2018

8% of Year Completed

 

Amount Account Interest Interest

Financial Institution Invested Number Rate Earned

  State of New Mexico

     Local Government Investment Pool 14,593,127 7102-1348 1.907% 23,019

  

Plus deposits 0

Less withdrawals 0

  Total LGIP investments 14,593,127 23,019

   Lea County State Bank CDAR 3,000,000 1.76%

Capital Project 7/31/2018

Vehicles 186,615.56

Campus Master Plan 60,000.00

Technology Upgrade 488,347.08

JASI 21,912.62

WHM South Gallery 266,594.43

Baseball Field 12,134.36

Rodeo Arena 187,188.52

Infrastructure 660,000.00

Luminis Software 2,993.00

Landscaping 143,488.29

Smart Classrooms 69,760.12

Campus Signage 113,228.90

Dorm/Apartment Refurbish 81,125.43

Campus Construction 146,698.25

Oil & Gas Training 143,888.70

Public Sector 9,227.00

Campus Security 104,832.98

Lumens Software-Distance Learng 5,000.00

Copier Replacement 60,274.00

Non-Recurring Compensation 652,169.10

Athletics 5,534.03

Student Life Programming 20,432.28

Succession Plan 52,014.15

WHM Exhibits 56,303.47

Track Upgrades 1,694,858.72

Driving Range Upgrades 500,000.00

McLean Hall Renovations 750,000.00

Cafeteria Upgrade 145,744.46

Channel 19 Upgrade 8,115.71

FERPA & Title IX 5,610.68

Equestrian Center 3,000,000.00

Bob Moran Upgrades 46,945.64

Turf Replacement 82,781.47

HVAC Software-Central Plant 200,000.00

Busing Support for Recruiting 5,872.30

HED Faculty Development 7,504.87
Caster Upgrades 2,500,000.00

Allied Health 5,704,302.95

Workforce Training Contingency 1,941.22

Total 18,203,440.29













NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-004 

RESOLUTION OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND APPRECIATION   

PAM WAGGONER PARKINSON  

 

WHEREAS, Pam Waggoner Parkinson’s passion for caring caused her to 

enroll and graduate from New Mexico Junior College in the nursing program, while 

at New Mexico Junior College she received a full academic scholarship; and  

WHEREAS, Pam Waggoner Parkinson’s passions were to help others and 

provide quality, personal medical treatment for people in Lea County; and  

WHEREAS, Pam Waggoner Parkinson was a successful healthcare provider 

and businesswoman, being a business partner with Dr. Alan Hurt in American 

Medical Group; and  

WHEREAS, Pam Waggoner Parkinson died May 15, 2018; and  

WHEREAS, Tommy Parkinson, husband of Pam Waggoner Parkinson and 

Dr. Alan Hurt, wanted to leave a legacy in her name, to help students wishing to 

enter the nursing field; and  

WHEREAS, a combined gift of $105,000 ($100,000 endowed and $5,000 

which is not endowed) was given to New Mexico Junior College Foundation, to 

provide scholarships for nursing students; and  

WHEREAS, the scholarship will be called the “Pamela Sue Parkinson 

Memorial Scholarship.” 



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of New Mexico 

Junior College conveys their condolences to the family and friends of Pam 

Waggoner Parkinson on her death; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of New Mexico Junior 

College, expresses its deep appreciation and gratitude for the generous 

donation made in the name and memory of Pam Waggoner Parkinson; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that because of this gift, many nursing 

students will be benefitted for years to come and the name of Pam Waggoner 

Parkinson will live on in the healthcare profession. 

 

 Passed by the Board of New Mexico Junior College this 16th day of August, 

2018. 

New Mexico Junior College Board 

_____________________________ 

Patricia Chappelle, Chair 

 

_______________________________ 

Ron Black, Secretary  

 

______________________________ 

Travis Glenn, Member 

 

_______________________________ 

Manny Gomez, Member 

 

_______________________________ 

Mary Lou Vinson, Member 

 

_______________________________ 

Evelyn Rising, Member 

 

________________________________ 

Hector Baeza, Member 

 

        



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-003 

DECLARATION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY AND  

APPROVAL OF DISPOSITION 

 

 WHEREAS, New Mexico Junior College (“NMJC”) owns the building and 

improvements located at 1710 Avenue J, Eunice, New Mexico, such building being 

approximately 2400 square feet (“Building”). The Building was constructed in 1990 

at the cost of approximately $31,000.00 with a contribution from the Burlington 

Foundation; and  

 WHEREAS, the Eunice Public Schools owns the land where the Building was 

constructed and is located such land being more fully described as Lots 7 and 8 of 

Block 1 Unit 1 of the West Eunice Addition to the City of Eunice, Lea County, New 

Mexico (“Real Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, NMJC owns certain personal property located in the Building, 

including, 1 magazine rack, 46 chairs, 30 tables, a television and television cart 

(“Personal Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, NMJC no longer uses the Building or the Personal Property, 

except in limited circumstances; and  

 WHEREAS, NMJC desires to transfer and donate the ownership of the 

Building and Personal Property to the Eunice Public Schools; and 

 WHEREAS, the Eunice Public Schools has a use for the Building and 

Personal Property and the Eunice Public Schools desires to accept the donation and 

transfer of the Building and Personal Property; and 

 WHEREAS, the transfer of the Building and Personal Property would be a 

transfer from one governmental entity to another governmental entity.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Building and Personal 

Property are declared to be surplus. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Building, Personal Property and any 

interest NMJC has in the Real Property be transferred to the Eunice Public Schools 



in accordance with the Agreement to Donate Property, a copy of which is attached 

as Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as if set out in 

full (“Agreement to Donate Property”). 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the President of NMJC is authorized and 

directed to submit the Agreement to Donate Property to the State Board of Finance 

for Approval, along with such other documents as may be required by the State 

Board of Finance in order to secure its approval in accordance with state law. The 

President is further directed to take such other actions consistent with the intent of 

this Resolution to complete the donation of the Building, the Personal Property and 

NMJC’s interest in the Real Property to Eunice Public Schools.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, following receipt of the approval of the State 

Board of Finance, the President shall be authorized, and the Board hereby delegates 

to the President the authority to execute and deliver on behalf of NMJC, the 

Agreement to Donate Property with any revisions thereto that the State Board of 

Finance may require or that the Superintendent determines is necessary or 

appropriate in order to permit the parties to proceed to a closing of the donation of 

the Building, the Personal Property and the interest of NMJC in the Real Property.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the President of NMJC is authorized to 

sign any and all bills of sale, quitclaim deeds, closing statements or other documents 

reasonably necessary to transfer the Building, the Personal Property and NMJC’s 

interest in the Real Property to the Eunice Public Schools. 

 Passed by the Board of New Mexico Junior College this ______day of 

August, 2018. 

New Mexico Junior College Board 

_____________________________ 

Patricia Chappelle, Chair 

 

_______________________________ 

Ron Black, Secretary  

 

______________________________ 

Travis Glenn, Member 



 

_______________________________ 

Manny Gomez, Member 

 

_______________________________ 

Mary Lou Vinson, Member 

 

_______________________________ 

Evelyn Rising, Member 

 

________________________________ 

Hector Baeza, Member 

 

        



Exhibit “A” 
 

AGREEMENT TO DONATE PROPERTY 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on this ___ day of ________, 2018 by and between 

New Mexico Junior College (“NMJC”) and Eunice Public Schools (“Eunice”). 

 

WHEREAS, NMJC owns the building and improvements located at 1710 Avenue J, 

Eunice, New Mexico, such building being approximately 2400 square feet (“Building”). The 

Building was constructed in 1990 at the cost of approximately $31,000.00 with a contribution from 

the Burlington Foundation; and  

 WHEREAS, Eunice owns the land where the Building was constructed and is located, 

such land being more fully described as Lots 7 and 8 of Block 1 Unit 1 of the West Eunice Addition 

to the City of Eunice, Lea County, New Mexico (“Real Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, NMJC owns certain personal property located in the Building, including, 1 

magazine rack, 46 chairs, 30 tables, a television and television cart (“Personal Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, NMJC no longer uses the Building or the Personal Property, except in limited 

circumstances; and  

 WHEREAS, NMJC desires to transfer and donate the ownership of the Building and 

Personal Property to Eunice; and 

 WHEREAS, Eunice has a use for the Building and Personal Property and Eunice desires 

to accept the donation and transfer of the Building and Personal Property; and 

 WHEREAS, the transfer of the Building and Personal Property would be a transfer from 

one governmental entity to another governmental entity.  

NOW THEREFORE, NMJC agrees to transfer and donate the Building and Property 

and its interest in the Real Property to Eunice for Eunice’s own use and Eunice agrees to accept 

the same. 

 

NMJC’s donation of the Building, Real Property and Personal Property to Eunice is 

subject to the approval of the New Mexico State Board of Finance. 

 

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE        EUNICE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kelvin Sharp, President    Dwain Haynes, Superintendent 

 

Approved: 

New Mexico State Board of Finance 

 

 

_____________________ 



 

QUITCLAIM DEED AND BILL OF SALE 
 

 New Mexico Junior College (“Grantor”) quitclaims to Eunice Public Schools 

(“Grantee”), whose address is 1720 Avenue K, Eunice, New Mexico 88231, the 

following described real property situated in Lea County, New Mexico, to-wit 

(“Real Property”): 

Lots 7 and 8 of Block 1 Unit 1 of the West Eunice Addition to the 

City of Eunice, Lea County, New Mexico having a common address 

of 1710 Avenue J, Eunice, New Mexico 

The building and improvements, such building being approximately 2400 square 

feet (“Building”). 

 Grantor further quitclaims, sells, transfers, assigns and conveys to Grantee, the 

following described personal property: 

The personal property located in the Building, including, 1 magazine rack, 46 chairs, 

30 tables, a television and television cart. 

 ALL REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY AND IMPROVEMENTS ARE 

TRANSFERRED AND CONVEYED WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY OF TITLE 

AND WITHOUT THE WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY AND WITHOUT 

THE WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. ALL SUCH 

PROPERTY IS TRANSFERRED “AS IS, WHERE IS” CONDITION.  

DATED this ____ day of _________, 2018. 

 

       

 

 



 

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE 

 

 

      By:_________________________________ 

       Kelvin Sharp 

       President      

  

 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO  ) 

      :ss 

COUNTY OF LEA   ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 

____________, 2018, by Kelvin Sharp, President of New Mexico Junior College. 

 

 

             

                                        ______________________________________ 

     NOTARY PUBLIC 

 

     My Commission Expires:_________________ 

 



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-005 

DECLARATION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY AND  

APPROVAL OF DISPOSITION 

 

This Resolution is adopted this 16th day of August, 2018 by the Board of New 

Mexico Junior College ("NMJC Board") at a duly called NMJC Board meeting 

convened in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. 

 

WHEREAS, New Mexico Junior College (“NMJC”) owns real property, 

commonly known as the NMJC Del Norte Fitness Center located at 1503 W. Calle 

Sur St., Hobbs, New Mexico as more particularly described on Exhibit “A” with 

certain improvements thereon (“Del Norte Property”); and 

 

WHEREAS, NMJC has contributed and continues to contribute funds to the 

Center of Recreational Excellence (“CORE”) located at 4827 N Lovington Hwy, 

Hobbs, NM 88240; and  

WHEREAS, as a result of ownership of a portion of the CORE and the ability 

to use the CORE, NMJC no longer has a use for the Del Norte Property. The Del 

Norte Property constitutes a drain on the resources of NMJC and NMJC has been 

encouraged by the New Mexico Higher Education Department to close “satellite” 

operations/campuses such as the Del Norte Property; and 

WHEREAS, NMJC had the Del Norte Property appraised and such appraisal 

was determined to be appropriate and in compliance with applicable stated 

requirements and standards by the New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department 

as shown by letter and Memorandum dated May 1, 2018 from the New Mexico 

Taxation and Revenue Department addressed to Dan Hardin, Vice President of 

Finance for New Mexico Junior College; and  

WHEREAS, NMJC has publicly advertised the Del Norte Property for sale 

and has solicited bids for the sale of the Del Norte Property under ITB 1087 Sale 

Del Norte Fitness Center (“Bid Package”); and  

 

WHEREAS, _____________________________ was the highest and best 

bidder to purchase the Del Norte Property (“High Bidder”) for _________________ 



(“Proposed Purchase Price”) as set forth the bid sheet submitted by the High Bidder, 

a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by 

reference as if set out in full; and  

 

WHEREAS, the High Bidder has signed the Real Estate Purchase Agreement 

as required by the Bid Package, such signed Real Estate Purchase Agreement is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein by reference as if set out in 

full (“Purchase Agreement”), the Purchase Agreement is subject to approval of the 

NMJC Board and subject to and conditioned upon approval of the State of New 

Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Board of Finance (“State Board 

of Finance”). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the NMJC Board as follows:  

 

1. The NMJC Board determines that it is in the best interest of New Mexico 

Junior College to sell the Del Norte Property to the High Bidder for the Proposed 

Purchase Price as described in the Purchase Agreement. The Purchase Agreement 

selling the Del Norte Property to the High Bidder for the Proposed Purchase Price is 

hereby approved.  

 

2. The NMJC Board has determined that the amount of the Proposed Purchase 

Price is in excess of the appraised value of the Del Norte Property and the Proposed 

Purchase Price is fair value for the Del Norte Property.   

 

3. The President of NMJC is authorized and directed to submit the Purchase 

Agreement to the State Board of Finance for approval, along with such other 

documents as may be required by the State Board of Finance in order to secure its 

approval in accordance with state law. The President is further directed to take such 

other actions consistent with the intent of this Resolution to complete the sale of the 

Del Norte Property to the High Bidder.   

 

4. Following receipt of the approval of the State Board of Finance the 

President shall be authorized, and the NMJC Board hereby delegates to the President 

the authority to execute and deliver on behalf of the NMJC Board the Purchase 

Agreement with any revisions thereto that the State Board of Finance may require 

or that the President determines is necessary or appropriate in order to permit the 

parties to proceed to a closing of a sale and purchase of real property, provided that 

any revisions of the Purchase Agreement or other requirements for proceeding with 

the closing mandated by the State Board of Finance or directed by the President are  

approved by NMJC’s attorneys. The President of NMJC is further authorized and 



the Board expressly delegates to the President the authority to execute and deliver 

on behalf of the NMJC Board such other documents and instruments as are necessary 

to close the  sale of the real property, including without limitation, the execution and 

recording of the Quitclaim Deed, the form of which is attached to the Purchase 

Agreement,  conveying the Del Norte Property to the High Bidder and such other 

closing documents as may be necessary to complete such closing.  

 

5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon passage 

and approval by the NMJC Board.  

 

ADOPTED by the Board of New Mexico Junior College as follows: 

 

  

New Mexico Junior College Board 

 

_____________________________ 

Patricia Chappelle, Chair 

 

_______________________________ 

Ron Black, Secretary  

 

______________________________ 

Travis Glenn, Member 

 

_______________________________ 

Manny Gomez, Member 

 

_______________________________ 

Mary Lou Vinson, Member 

 

_______________________________ 

Evelyn Rising, Member 

 

________________________________ 

Hector Baeza, Member 

  



 

EXHIBIT “A” 

DESCRIPTION OF DEL NORTE REAL PROPERTY 

 

For Surface Title Only: 

A tract of land located in the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter 

(SE/4SW/4) of Section 16, Township 18 South, Range 38 East, N.M.P.M., Lea 

County, New Mexico, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a point which lies N00º13'15"W, 1298.35 feet and S89º52'15"W, 

2642.59 feet from the Southeast corner of said Section 16; thence S00º15'E, 245.0 

feet; thence S89º52'15"W, 245.0 feet; thence N00º15'W, 245.0 feet; thence 

N89º52'15"E, 245.0 feet to the point of beginning, subject to a 25-foot utility 

easement on, over, and under the East 25 feet thereof and a roadway easement on, 

over and along the West 21.7 feet thereof.  

  



EXHIBIT “B” 

BID SHEET SUBMITTED BY HIGH BIDDER 

  



EXHIBIT “C”  

REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 














































































	Board Agenda
	Board Minutes
	Board Reports Memo
	Qrtly Financial Report
	RPSP Funding
	Resolution-Pam Waggoner Parkinson
	Resolution No. 2018-003 Eunice
	QUITCLAIM DEED and BILL OF SALE Final
	Resolution No. 2018-005 Disposal of Del Norte Property

